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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL, (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Coffee County Courthouse in Elba is a two-story brick Romanesque 
structure with Richardsonian influences. The most arresting features of 
the building are the twin turrets and the square clock tower that rises 
between them. The semicircular turrets are two-story in height and topped 
by conical roofs. Each has two rectangular windows with four large panes 
on the first floor and three arched windows on the second floor. Between 
the turrets on the first floor is a brick arch above the entrance. The 
double doors have two panels each. The upper panel is glass and the 
lower panel wood. Above the door is a three pane fanlight. .Above the 
entrance there is a balcony with a plain balustrade and an arched doorway 
that repeats the first floor entrance.

The brick square clock tower rises above the entrance and balcony. There 
are three arched ribbon windows below the clock with a small non-functional 
balcony in front of them on the front side of the building. On the other 
three sides, the arched windows and balcony are omitted. The circular 
clocks on each side are set in circular patterned brickwork set in a square 
that has recessed brickwork at the four corners. The tower is capped by 
a pyramidal roof with a finial on top. On the first floor the windows 
are rectangular shaped with two lights in each sash. On the second floor 
the windows are arched with each having four lights. Above the windows 
is a single row of projecting brick outlining each arch. The building 
has a hipped roof.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Elba became the county seat of Coffee County in 1852. The first court­ 
house, located in Wellborn, burned in 1851, and an election was held 
October 5, 1852, to select a new county seat. Elba received 491 votes 
and Indigo Head (Clintonville) received 433 votes. Elba had been founded 
about 1840 as Bridgeville. The name was changed in 1850 to Bentonville 
in honor of Senator Thomas Hart Benton of Missouri who served in Alabama 
in 1813-1814 during the Creek War. In December 1851 the name was 
again changed. Elba was drawn out a hat during a town mass meeting.

The first Elba courthouse, a two-story white frame building completed in 
1853, was burned by "Ward's Raiders", a band of Confederate deserters, 
bushwhackers, and Tories, in 1863. A replacement building was not 
completed until 1867. In 1881 this building was sold and moved and the 
first brick courthouse was completed in 1882. Although this building 
was enlarged in 1899, it still inadequate, so the present courthouse was 
built in 1903. In the same year the legislature passed a law, later 
declared unconstitutional, establishing a branch courthouse in Enterprise, 
In 1907 another act was passed that made provisions for a separate judicial 
district centered in Enterprise and provided for branches of all principal 
county offices to be located there. The third and present Enterprise 
courthouse was built in 1924
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